
JULY 11, 2022
REGULAR MEETING
SAWDON ADMINISTRATION BUILDING
BOARD ROOM
6:00 PM

Grand Ledge Public Schools

Board of Education



July 11, 2022

REGULAR MEETING



Grand Ledge Public Schools 
 

Regular Meeting 
of the 

Board of Education 
 

Please take notice that the Board of Education will hold a Regular Meeting on: 
 

Date:  Monday, July 11, 2022 
 

Place:  Sawdon Administration Building 
   Board Room 
   220 Lamson Street 

     Grand Ledge, MI  48837  
 

Time:  6:00 p.m.  
 

Purpose:  General Business  
 

Phone:  (517) 925-5400 
 
Board minutes are located at the Board of Education office, 220 Lamson 
Street, Grand Ledge, MI  48837 
 
 
  

Marcus G. Davenport, Ph.D., Superintendent of Schools 
 
cc: Buildings 
 Board Members 
 Lansing State Journal 
 Grand Ledge Independent 
 Melissa Mazzola, Co-President, GLEA  
 Greg Almy, Co-President, GLEA 

Cindy Zerbe, President, MEA/NEA Unit I, Secretarial /Clerical 
 TBD, President, MEA/NEA Unit III, Food Service 
 Vicky Wenzlick, President, MEA/NEA Unit IV, TA/HC/Bus Assistants & Adv. Club 

Danis Peck, President, IUOE Local 547, A, B, C, E & H AFL-CIO, Bus Drivers 
Sarra Ruiz, President, Custodial Association 
 

 
Date of Posting: July 6, 2022 

NOTE:  Individuals may address the Board for up to three (3) minutes in the Public Comment segment of the meeting.  Any person with a 
disability needing accommodations to attend a Board of Education meeting should contact Kim Manning at 925-5401 at least three (3) days 
prior to the date of the meeting he/she plans to attend 



 
NOTE:  Individuals may address the Board for up to three (3) minutes in the Public Comment segments of the meeting.  If any 
person with a disability needs accommodations at the Board of Education meeting, please contact Kim Manning at 925-5401 at 
least three (3) days prior to the date of the meeting he/she plans to attend. 
 
 

Grand Ledge Public Schools 
Board of Education 
MEETING AGENDA 

Monday, July 11, 2022 
6:00 pm 

 
 

I. Call to Order & Pledge of Allegiance……………………..……….….….Jon Shiflett, President 
 

II. Roll Call……………………………………………..…..Dr. Marcus Davenport Superintendent 
 

III. Approval of Agenda Items 
 

IV. Approval of Consent Agenda Items 
A. June 27, 2022 Regular Meeting & Closed Session Minutes 

  

V. Reports 
A. Capitol Connections 
B. Grand Ledge Education Foundation 
C. Bond Update 
D. Superintendent 

a. NEOLA Policy Implementation Update 
1. 0000 – Bylaws (Policies 0100 – 0175.1) 
2. 1000 – Administration (Policies 1100 – 1662) 
3. 2000 – Programs (Policies 2105 – 2700) 
4. 3000 – Professional Staff (Policies 3110 – 3531) 
5. 4000 – Support Staff (Policies 4110 – 4531) 
6. 5000 – Students (Policies 5111 – 5895) 
7. 6000 – Finances (Policies 6107 – 6850) 
8. 7000 – Property (Policies 7217 – 7545) 
9. 8000 – Operations (Policies 8120 - 8900) 
10. 9000 – Relations (Policies 9111 - 9800) 

 

VI. Public Comment  
 

VII. Old Business 
A. Pre-Bond Work at Delta Center  

a. Approval of Pre-Bond Costs 
b. Approval of Easement 

 

VIII. New Business 
A. Approval of Employee Contract 

a. Building & Grounds Maintenance Association 
B. Approval of the Payment of Food Service Invoices 

a. Trades 
® Stafford-Smith, Inc.   

C. Approval of the Payment of Capital Funds Invoices 
a. Trades 

® Dobie Construction ® Vander Hyde Mechanical  

D. Approval of the Payment of Proposal 1, Series 1 Bond Invoices 
a. GMB Architects & Engineers – June 2022 

 

E. Approval of the Payment of Proposal 1, Series 2 Bond Invoices 
a. Clark Construction – June 2022 

F. Approval of the Payment of Proposal 2, Series 1 Bond Invoices 
a. Clark Construction – June 2022 
b. GMB – June 2022 
c. Trades – June 2022 

® Applied Flooring 
® Aquatic Source 
® Burggrabe Masonry 
® Glazing Solutions  

® IntegraCore Constructors 
® Kerkstra Precast 
® Mall City Mechanical 
® Proline Concrete 

® Rayhaven Group 
® Town & Country Electric 
® Vander Hyde Mechanical 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



 
NOTE:  Individuals may address the Board for up to three (3) minutes in the Public Comment segments of the meeting.  If any 
person with a disability needs accommodations at the Board of Education meeting, please contact Kim Manning at 925-5401 at 
least three (3) days prior to the date of the meeting he/she plans to attend. 
 
 

 

Grand Ledge Public Schools 
Board of Education 
MEETING AGENDA 

Monday, July 11, 2022 
6:00 pm  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
VIII. New Business (Continued) 

 
 

G. Approval of the Payment of Proposal 2, Series 2 Bond Invoices 
a. Clark Construction – June 2022 
b. GMB Architects & Engineers – June 2022 
c. Trades – June 2022 

® American Asphalt 
® Centennial Electric 
® Davenport Masonry 
® Delta Steel 
® Dobie Construction 

® Kerkstra Precast 
® Moore Trosper 
® Professional Thermal Systems 
® Proline Concrete 

® Stonecreek Interior Systems 
® Total Fire Protection 
® Twin Lakes Nursery 
® Vander Hyde Mechanical 

 

IX. Comments from Staff and Board 
 

X. Future Topics 
A. Board Bond Advisory Meeting – Monday, August 8, 2022, 5:00 p.m., Sawdon Room 107 
B. Work Session – Monday, August 8, 2022, 6:00 p.m., Board Room  

 

XI. Closed Session – Attorney/Client Privilege – Per Section 8(1)(e) of the Open Meetings Act, PA 267 of 1976 – 
Hultberg v. GLPS, File No. 42172 
 

XII. Reconvene in Open Session 
 

XIII. Adjournment 
 

Page 2 



"I pledge allegiance 

to the Flag 

of the United States of America, 

and to the republic 

for which it stands, 

one Nation under God, 

indivisible, 

with liberty and justice for all."

CALL TO ORDER & 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

President Jon Shiflett

5



ROLL CALL

Superintendent Dr. Marcus Davenport

6



PROPOSED MOTION: I move the Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education approve the                                  
July 11, 2022 Agenda Items, as presented.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA ITEMS

7



A.  June 27, 2022 Regular Meeting & Closed Session Minutes*

PROPOSED MOTION: I move the Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education approve the                     
July 11, 2022 Consent Agenda Items, as presented.

*NOTE:  Closed Session Minutes will be available at your board places for review prior to approval.  All copies will 
be collected at the end of the meeting.

APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS

8



Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education 06-27-2022 
Regular Meeting   Page 1  
 

 

 GRAND LEDGE PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
 Board of Education 
 

 Regular Meeting – June 27, 2022 
 

MINUTES 
 
President Shiflett called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.p.m. He led those present in the Pledge 
of Allegiance. 
 

ROLL CALL 
Roll Call by Superintendent Marcus Davenport indicated the presence of Board Members: Jon 
Shiflett, Nicole Shannon, Jarrod Smith, Sara Clark Pierson, Denise DuFort, Ben Cwayna and Toni 
Glasscoe.  Members Absent:  None.  Central Office Administrators: Marcus Davenport, Steve 
Gabriel, Bill Barnes, and Julie Waterbury.  Others in Attendance: Melissa Mazzola, Martez Warren, 
Jr., Sally Jo Nelton, Alison Walczak, Howard Pizzo, Nell Pizzo, Ashley Kuykendoll, Kyle Dymond, 
Ashley Oneil, Kim Laforet, Shari Kissane, Tim Totten, Mark Laforet, Joan Nelson, Dawne Velianoff 
and Kim Manning 
 
OPEN – TRUTH IN TAXATION/TRUTH IN BUDGETING HEARING 
Motion by Ms. Clark Pierson, seconded by Mr. Cwayna for the Grand Ledge Public Schools 
Board of Education to OPEN the Truth in Taxation/Truth in Budgeting Hearing.   
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: 
 

Ms. Shannon YES Mr. Cwayna YES 
Mr. Smith YES Dr. Glasscoe YES 

Ms. Clark Pierson YES President Shiflett YES 
Ms. DuFort YES   

 
The motion carried unanimously at 6:01 p.m. 
 
Chief Financial Officer Julie Waterbury provided the board with a detailed overview of the 2022-
2023 proposed budgets for Debt Service, Food Service, Community Education, School Store, 
Student Activities, Capital Improvement, Technology Capital Projects, 2019 Capital Projects 
Proposal 2, 2021 Capital Projects Proposal 1, 2021 Capital Projects Proposal 2 and General Fund 
noting a projected ending fund balance of 6.28% below the Board’s recommended 8%.  She 
reviewed expenditure projections and cost savings through attrition.  
 
A detailed discussion among the members noted the district had a healthy fund balance going 
into the 2021-2022 school year and understood this would be a deficit year because of all the 
challenges and ensuring we are providing services to catch everyone up, reminding everyone the 
2021-2022 budget was adopted prior to Dr. Davenport’s hiring, complimenting Dr. Davenport 
and Mrs. Waterbury and everyone for working to keep everyone informed, staying transparent 
and ensuring we continue to move the district forward.  Further discussion referenced public 
schools having to adopt a budget without having a budget from the State of Michigan noting it is 
anticipated a budget will be brought forward later this week, expressing concern over the district 
having to provide costs for a resource officer when it is local law enforcements job to ensure 
public safety, reviewing schools of choice numbers while noting that until the students are 
actually here we cannot officially consider them students, concerns about not filling positions and 



Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education 06-27-2022 
Regular Meeting   Page 2  
 

 

noting these decisions will continue to be monitored to ensure appropriate staffing levels and 
advising this will be a busy summer with the summer school program, continued bond 
construction, continued work on improving and heightening safety and security at our buildings 
and monitoring student enrollment. 
 
CLOSE – TRUTH IN TAXATION/TRUTH IN BUDGETING HEARING 
Motion by Ms. Shannon, seconded by Mr. Smith to CLOSE the Truth in Taxation/Truth in 
Budgeting Hearing.  The motion carried unanimously at 6:26 p.m. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA ITEMS 
Motion by Ms. Shannon, seconded by Mr. Smith for the Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of 
Education to approve the June 27, 2022 Agenda Items, as amended to add an Item 9B 
Superintendent’s Bonus.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 
Dr. Davenport noted that he appreciates the board’s consideration of adding this agenda item, but 
in the face of potential financial hurdles for the next year he would rather not take a bonus this 
year.  He noted he believes in leading by example and didn’t take this position based on finances 
but based on the challenge to continue moving the district forward.  He thanked the board for 
their consideration of bringing this forward as it was noted in his contract and reiterating, he will 
forgo a bonus in light of the district’s current financial position. 
 
Discussion among the members recognized Dr. Davenport’s commitment and noting this item 
would be reconsidered during his next evaluation. 
 
APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 
Motion by Mr. Smith, seconded by Ms. Shannonfor the Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of 
Education to approve the June 27, 2022 Consent Agenda Items, as presented.  The motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
Included on the Consent Agenda was the June 13, 2022 Work Session Minutes, Administrative 
Contract Renewals, the Administrative Hirings of Kelly Jones as Director of Human Resources and 
Martez Warren, Jr. and Director of Operations and the Teacher Hiring of Kimberly Wheat as a 3rd 
grade teacher at Delta Center Elementary.    
 
Discussion among the members noted Congress has recently put forth legislation that was signed 
by President Biden to extend the free lunch program for all students.   
 
Dr. Davenport noted the two new administrative hires were in attendance welcoming them to the 
district and sharing that there was not an over-abundance of people applying for positions at this 
time and sharing both Ms. Jones and Mr. Warren bring a positive energy to the district and have 
great experience they are bringing with them. 
 
REPORTS 

A. Capitol Connections Report 
Dr. Glasscoe retiterated everyone is cautiously optimistic there will be a state aid budget 
approved later this week but she is also under the understanding there is potential if the 
education funding portion of the legislation cannot be agreed to, it could be pulled out as 
a separate budget. 

  



Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education 06-27-2022 
Regular Meeting   Page 3  
 

 

 
B. Eaton RESA Report 

Mrs. DuFort shared the Eaton RESA conducted their Truth in Taxation / Truth in Budgeting 
hearing and approved their 2022-2023 budget and received a presentation from Kim 
Thalison, Prevention Program Services Director sharing the programs they provide and the 
partners they work with.  She noted the presentations are available on the Eaton RESA 
website if anyone is interested in reviewing them.  She further noted they received 
information on the Michigan Profile for Health Youths, commonly known as the MIPhy 
Survey.  This is a survey given to students in grades 7, 9 and 11 every two years to project 
risky behavior in youth and track trends. 
 

C. Equity, Diversity & Inclusion Committee 
Mrs. DuFort noted the original EDI Committee that was formed two years ago met to 
review where thing stand with regard to the report that was accepted by the Board of 
Education noting there were four focus areas.  She advised the administration has been 
looking at how that might be presented to our students at the different levels.   
 
It was noted the Board has accepted the report, but it has not been adopted. 
 

D. Grand Ledge Education Foundation  
Ms. Shannon shared information from the 18th Annual Josh Spalsbury 5K Comet Chase 
that the Foundation held in conjunction with Yankee Doodle Day on June 18 noting this 
was the best turn out in the 18 years since the inception of this fundraiser and she looks 
forward to the foundation continuing to support “extras” for our teachers outside what is 
available through district dollars. 
 

E. Bond Update  
Dr. Johnson provided the board with an update on the additional work tied to the Beagle 
Pool that will address the installation of basketball courts, improving the bus loop and 
providing parking noting this work had to wait until students were done with school as the 
current bus loop was utilized throughout the year.  He noted the high school track is 
finishing up with punch list items and the concession stand is awaiting Health Department 
approval.  He noted the high school fine arts and athletic facility is taking shape with the 
second story now being constructed.  He advised the theatrical lighting system for the 
auditorium is delayed due to a supply issue with the dimming package so this will not be 
completed until next summer.  However, the sound system will be installed this summer.  
The high school pool, becoming the community pool should be complete mid to late July 
and shared that pre-bid work at Delta Center will be discussed by the board later in their 
agenda and noting that bids for construction at Delta Center will be due July 19th for the 
board to award bids in August.  New construction at Wacousta is awaiting the design 
budget to determine next steps in the planning process.   
 

F. Superintendent’s Report 
Dr. Davenport expressed his thanks to the board for their leadership and guidance, 
acknowledged this is Dr. Gabriel’s final board meeting and commending him for the 
professionalism he has shown throughout the year and thanking him for his partnership 
commenting he is “one of a kind”.  He reiterated this will be a working summer ensuring 
we are ready for students next year while finalizing the new NEOLA policies for the 
board’s consideration, ensuring security and safety remains in the forefront and noting 



Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education 06-27-2022 
Regular Meeting   Page 4  
 

 

administration will be visible at summer school and finding creative ways to help offset 
our budget.  He then turned it over to Dr. Barnes for a Summer School Update. 
 
Assistant Superintendent for Academic Services Dr. Barnes shared Summer School starts 
tomorrow.  He expressed his thanks and appreciation to Mrs. Holding and Mrs. Brentar 
for the integral part in getting summer school up and ready for students.  He shared there 
are currently 419 K-8 students and approximately 70 high school students signed up to 
participate, over 100 staff members involved from all employee groups (food service, 
secretaries, deans, bus drivers, custodial, teachers, teacher aids, etc.). He noted the 
summer school program is being provided free of charge for all enrolled students based 
on federal funds that were set aside.  He noted he and Mrs. Waterbury had a meeting with 
the State of Michigan to review the program and it was noted Grand Ledge is a model of 
what the state had envisioned for a summer school program and noted Grand Ledge really 
wrapped their heads around this program to create flexibility.  He noted everyone is 
welcome to visit and sharing that staff will be wearing blue shirt this year. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
Mr. Smith read the rules for addressing the board. 
 
Dawne Velianoff questioned the district’s participation in School of Choice and advising she was 
unable to find where the board took action to participate, referenced the budget noting the ratio 
has stayed the same for the past five years but if the dollars are looking funny something is not 
right, questioning why we are doing a cap for open enrollment when we don’t have policies that 
address bullying and anarchy signs are being painted on our buildings, and concerns that are 
never brought back up or answered. 
 
Alison Walczak questioned how the EDI Committee members were selected, what it means to 
accept the report but not adopt it, and asking if there is any way for someone to join the 
committee now. 
 
Ashley Oneil expressed concerns regarding unlocked doors during the school day and asking 
what is being done and how it is being addressed encouraging something be put in place prior to 
the upcoming school year.  She noted it would be good for everyone to see, and know, in 
general, what is being done.   
 
Kim Laforet thanked the board for putting comment after the main thing in the meeting and 
questioned how the current lawsuits will affect the budget and if there are grants available that 
could offset the cost of the school resource officer. 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
A.  2ND READING & APPROVAL OF OPERATIONS POLICIES 

a. FM415 – FOOD SERVICE – MEAL CHARGES 
b. FM416 – FOOD SERVICE – UNCOLLECTABLE DEBT 

Motion by Mrs. DuFort, seconded by Ms. Shannon for the Grand Ledge Public Schools Board 
of Education to approve Operations Policy FM415 – Food Service – Meal Charges and FM416 
– Food Service – Uncollectable Debt, as presented.   
 
It was reiterated that Congress has recently enacted legislation signed by President Biden to 
extend the free lunch program and advising the bulk of the uncollectable debt had been paid 
off by private donations. 



Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education 06-27-2022 
Regular Meeting   Page 5  
 

 

 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

B. APPROVAL OF FINAL 2021-2022 BUDGET AMENDMENT RESOLUTION 
Motion by Ms. Shannon , seconded by Ms. Clark Pierson for the Grand Ledge Public Schools 
Board of Education to approve the Final 2021-2022 Budget Amendment Resolution, noting a 
projected General Fund balance below the Board’s recommended 8%, as presented. 
 
Chief Financial Officer Julie Waterbury shared a detailed overview of the 2021-2022 Final 
Budget Amendment Resolution reviewing the individual budgets, expenditure increases due to 
the payment of additional compensation under various employee contracts, tax repayments to 
various municipalities for board of review or tax tribunal tax adjustments, the purchase of 
classroom technology items under ESSER funding and the increase in fuel, utility and supply 
costs.   

 
    ROLL CALL VOTE: 
 

Mr. Smith YES Dr. Glasscoe YES 
Ms. Clark Pierson YES President Shiflett YES 

Mrs. DuFort YES Ms. Shannon YES 
Mr. Cwayna NO   

 
The motion carried 6-1. 
 

C. APPROVAL OF 2022-2023 BUDGET RESOLUTION 
Motion by Mr. Smith, seconded by Ms. Shannon for the Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of 
Education to approve the 2022-2023 Debt Service, Food Service, Community Education, 
School Store, Student Activities, Capital Improvement, Technology Capital Projects, 2019 
Capital Projects Proposal 2, 2021 Capital Projects Proposal 1, 2021 Capital Projects Proposal 
2 and General Fund Budget Resolution noting a projected General Fund balance below the 
Board’s recommended 8%, as presented. 
 

    ROLL CALL VOTE: 
 

Ms. Clark Pierson YES President Shiflett YES 
Mrs. DuFort YES Ms. Shannon YES 
Mr. Cwayna NO Mr. Smith YES 
Dr. Glasscoe YES   

 
The motion carried 6-1. 
   

D. APPROVAL OF 2022 TAX RATE REQUEST FORM (L-4029) FOR EATON, CLINTON & IONIA COUNTIES 
Motion by Mr. Smith, seconded by Ms. Clark Pierson for the Grand Ledge Public Schools 
Board of Education to approve the 2022 Tax Rate Request Form (L-4029) for Eaton, Clinton 
and Ionia Counties, as presented. 
 
Chief Financial Officer Julie Waterbury provided information on the Tax Rate Request Form 
advising this notified the counties to collect the tax on behalf of the district. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 



Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education 06-27-2022 
Regular Meeting   Page 6  
 

 

 
E. APPROVAL OF 2022 TAX RATE REQUEST FORM (L-4029) FOR CITY OF GRAND LEDGE AND DELTA 

TOWNSHIP 
Motion by Ms. Shannon, seconded by Ms. Clark Pierson for the Grand Ledge Public Schools 
Board of Education to approve the 2022 Tax Rate Request Form (L-4029) for the City of 
Grand Ledge and Delta Township, as presented.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
A. PRE-BOND WORK AT DELTA CENTER DISCUSSION 

A detailed discussion provided the board with information regarding three main activities that 
must take place this summer prior to the start of construction at Delta Center Elementary 
School this fall including relocating the main electrical transformer, relocating the fiber optic 
line serving the facility and extended the existing sanitary line from inside the school out to the 
exterior.  Construction documents are to be available on June 30, 2022 with bids due on July 
19, 2022 for board approval of contract awards at the August 8, 2022 meeting.  However, this 
presents only two weeks prior to staff reporting back to school and does not provide enough 
time to accomplish these tasks.  Clark Construction is recommended the district enter into 
contact agreements at their July meeting to allow for the completion of these three main 
activities prior to the full construction bid awards. 
 

COMMENTS FROM STAFF AND BOARD 
Ms. Clark Pierson thanked Dr. Gabriel for his service. 
 
Mr. Cwayna commented the EDIC Report needs to brought up for discussion and the board 
should discuss the potential adoption of the report.  Further discussion among the members 
clarified the process by which the EDI Committee members were selected through an application 
process, clarifying the report was accepted and the committee tasked the administration with 
creating possible steps for implementation to provide the board with more information on how 
things might look, confirming a delay in the process while the board developed its goals under 
the Strategic Plan and consensus that this matter needs to be discussed at the next board meeting 
to provide everyone with an update on how things are progressing and possible board action to 
adopt the report and next steps. 
 
Mrs. DuFort expressed her excited with the number of students participating in the summer 
school program and personally thanking Dr. Gabriel for his many years of service stating she 
know how hard he has worked on behalf of the district, that his leadership will be missed and 
wishing him nothing but the best in the future. 
 
Dr. Glasscoe noted she and Dr. Gabriel go way back noting he was so welcoming and she 
enjoyed their conversations as she moved through different assignments at LCC stating he was 
very helpful.  She advised Dr. Barnes he would be seeing her at the summer school program.  She 
thanked Dr. Davenport for leading by example and leading by what he does and not what he 
says.  She noted Grand Ledge is full of resources and she looks forward to rolling up our sleeves 
to address what needs to be addressed. 
 
President Shiflett noted he has served on the board for 10 years and thanked Dr. Gabriel for his 
level of patience with someone who thought they knew more than they did noting that while he 
was not always polite and as wonderful as he should have been, Dr. Gabriel was always 
professional and delicate allowing him to grow and learn in this space. He commented he doesn’t 



Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education 06-27-2022 
Regular Meeting   Page 7  
 

 

believe Dr. Gabriel understands that he will miss him greatly and he wishes him great luck in 
whatever his future holds. 
 
CLOSED SESSION – MATERIAL EXEMPT FROM DISCLOSURE 
Motion by Mr. Smith, seconded by Mr. Cwayna for the Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of 
Education to move into Closed Session for the purpose of discussing Material Exempt from 
Disclosure, as per Section 8(1)(h) of the Open Meetings Act, PA 267 of 1976. 
 
    ROLL CALL VOTE: 
 

Mr. DuFort YES Ms. Shannon YES 
Mr. Cwayna YES Mr. Smith YES 
Dr. Glasscoe YES Ms. Clark Pierson YES 

President Shiflett YES   
 

The motion carried unanimously at 7:33 p.m. 
 
RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION 
The meeting reconvened in Open Session at 8:39 p.m. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting adjourned at 8:40 p.m. 
 
Respectfully Submitted:    Attest: 
 
 
 
________________________________   _______________________________ 
Jarrod Smith, Secretary     Jon Shiflett, President 



A.  Capitol Connections Report

B.  Grand Ledge Education Foundation Report

C.  Bond Update

D. Superintendent’s Report

a.    NEOLA Policy Implementation Update

1.      0000 – Bylaws (Policies 0100 – 0175.1)
2.      1000 – Administration (Policies 1100 – 1662)
3.      2000 – Programs (Policies 2105 – 2700)
4.      3000 – Professional Staff (Policies 3110 – 3531)
5.      4000 – Support Staff (Policies 4110 – 4531)
6.      5000 – Students (Policies 5111 – 5895)
7.      6000 – Finances (Policies 6107 – 6850)
8.      7000 – Property (Policies 7217 – 7545)
9.      8000 – Operations (Policies 8120 - 8900)
10.    9000 – Relations (Policies 9111 - 9800)

REPORTS

16



Persons may address the board for up to three (3) minutes in the Public Comment segment of the meeting by 
providing your name and jurisdiction (City, Township / County) on one of the Public Comment forms provided at the 
sign in table and turning it in to the Superintendent’s Assistant.

The meeting chair will use the Public Comment forms submitted to invite persons to come forward to make their 
public comment at the appropriate time.

Board Meetings are constructed to conduct necessary business of the board, while allowing time for the public to 
express concerns and opinions.  

Out of respect for board members, students and staff, you will be interrupted if you:
• Personally attack a board member or district employee on issues unrelated to their job performance. 
• Mention a student’s name when discussing behavior or other incidents. 
• Engage in discussion with other members of the audience.

You will be reminded when you are approaching the end of your three-minute limit so you can conclude with your 
strongest points.

The board will not respond to questions or comments during public comment but the Superintendent will do his best 
to answer questions at the end of the meeting.  If immediate answers are not available, arrangements will be made to    
provide you with the information requested.

PUBLIC COMMENT

17



A.  Pre-Bond Work at Delta Center

a. Approval of Pre-Bond Costs

PROPOSED MOTION:  I move the Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education approve the 
estimated payments in the amount of Two Hundred Sixteen Thousand, Sixteen Dollars and Fifty-Nine 
Cents ($216,016.59) from Proposal 1, Series 2 Bond Funds for work required prior to the Delta Center 
Construction and Authorize Superintendent Marcus Davenport to execute the Electric Service 
Agreement with the Board of Water and Light, as presented.

OLD BUSINESS AA

18

















A.  Pre-Bond Work at Delta Center

 b. Approval of Easement

PROPOSED MOTION:  I move the Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education grant a 
permanent easement to the City of Lansing by its Board of Water and Light to enter the District’s 
property located at 305 S. Canal Road and Authorize Superintendent Marcus Davenport to execute 
the Easement for Underground Electric Facilities, as presented.

OLD BUSINESS AB

26













A.  Approval of Employee Contract
a. Building & Grounds Maintenance Association

PROPOSED MOTION:  I move the Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education approve the 
Employee Contract with the Building & Grounds Maintenance Association, as presented.

NEW BUSINESS A

32



Building and Grounds Maintenance Association 

Summary of Contract Changes 

 

Contract period July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023 

 

ARTICLE 12 – Paid Time Off       

A.  PTO time for maintenance employees shall accumulate as follows. 

1. New Employees: 

a. Any new employee, upon the successful completion of the 90 work-day probationary period, 

will earn three (3) days of PTO time for the first four months and then .5 days of PTO time per 

month of service until the last day of the district’s fiscal year (Maximum PTO able to earn would 

be  seven (7) days). 

b. 2nd – 4th year  12 days  

c. 5th – 9th year  18 days       

d. 10th – 14th year  20 days      

e. 15+   24 days      

PTO time will be front loaded on July 1 but considered earned during the current year.  Any employee 

leaving employment prior to the end of the fiscal year shall have PTO days prorated based upon actual 

days worked.  Reimbursement to the District for unearned days may be required. 

Employees will not be granted unpaid days off unless pre-approved by the Director of Human 

Resources.  

ARTICLE 15 – GENERAL WORKING CONDITIONS 

D.  Employees shall obtain certifications as required by their job duties within one (1) year of the 

effective date of this contract or the date of hire for new employees.  The Director of Operations, in 

coordination with the Director of Human Resources, shall determine the necessary certifications for 

each position. 

APPENDIX A 

IV.    Employees eligible to receive step increases shall receive the appropriate step raise effective July 

17, 2022.   Employees on Step 12 in 2021-22 shall remain on Step 12 for the duration of this agreement. 

VII. Employees actively employed by the District as of June 1 shall receive a payment in lieu of a cost of 

living adjustment of $.50 per regularly scheduled annual hours.  For a full-time employee this would be 

$.50 for 2,080 hours or $1,040.  Part-time employees or new hires would be pro-rated based upon their 

reduced number of hours.  This payment will be paid on the first pay in June. 

 



 
 
 
 

MASTER AGREEMENT 
 

BETWEEN 
 

GRAND LEDGE BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

AND 
 

BUILDING AND GROUNDS 
MAINTENANCE ASSOCIATION 

 
 

 
 
 

JULY 1, 2022- JUNE 30, 2023 
 



 

 
 

PREAMBLE 
 
WHEREAS, the Board has an obligation, pursuant to Act 336 of the Michigan Public Acts 
of 1965 as amended, to negotiate with representatives of its employees with respect to 
hours, wages, terms and conditions of employment, and 
 
WHEREAS, the parties have reached certain understandings through extended and 
deliberate professional negotiations, it is hereby agreed as follows: 
 

AGREEMENT 
 
This Agreement entered into by and between the Board of Education of the Grand Ledge 
Public Schools, Grand Ledge, Michigan, hereinafter called the "Board," and the Grand 
Ledge Maintenance Association, hereinafter referred to as the "Association." 
 

ARTICLE 1 - RECOGNITION 
 
A. The Board hereby recognizes the Grounds and Maintenance Association as the 

exclusive bargaining representative, as defined in Section II of Act 336, Public Acts 
of 1965, for non- supervisory school personnel employed by the Board as 
Maintenance. 

 
B. Nothing contained herein shall be construed to deny or restrict any individual 

employee's rights he/she may have under the Michigan General Schools Laws or the 
right of the individual employee to confer with and raise issues or problems with 
appropriate supervisory personnel. 

 
C. The employee must be working on a regularly scheduled job to be included under 

this Handbook.  This shall be interpreted to mean substitutes shall not be covered by 
this Agreement but seasonal labor or contractor services will be covered by this 
handbook.  

 
D.  The Grounds and Maintenance employees are considered essential workers.  They 

work 52 weeks per yrear, 40 hours per week. 
 
 

ARTICLE 2 - AID TO OTHER UNIONS 
 
The Employer will not aid, promote, or finance any labor group or organization which 
purports to engage in collective bargaining or make any agreement with any such group or 
organization for the purpose of undermining the Association.   
 

ARTICLE 3 - GENDER 
 
Reference to the male gender shall apply equally to the female gender and vice versa. 



 

 
 

 
ARTICLE 4 - NON-DISCRIMINATION 

 
This Agreed to Handbook shall be applied uniformly to all eligible members of the bargaining 
unit by the Employer and the Association.  There will be no discrimination with respect to 
conditions of employment. 
  

 
ARTICLE 5 - BOARD RIGHTS 

 
A. In order to carry out its responsibility for the development and operation of education 

programs providing the best possible educational opportunity for the Grand Ledge 
Public Schools consistent with community resources, the Board retains and reserves 
unto itself all powers, rights, authority, duties and responsibilities conferred upon and 
vested in the Board by law including by way of illustration, and not by way of 
limitation, the following: 

 
1. The supervision, direction, and control of the management and administration 

of the school system, its properties and facilities. 
 

2. The right to hire all employees and subject to the provisions of the law to 
determine their qualifications, to discharge, demote or otherwise discipline 
employees for reasonable and just cause and to promote and transfer 
employees. 

 
3.  The right to hire contractor(s) or temporary labor for services deemed 

necessary to meet maintenance needs of the district.    
 
B. The exercise of the foregoing powers, rights, duties, and responsibilities by the Board 

and the adoption of policies, rules, regulations and practices in the furtherance 
thereof, shall be the exclusive prerogative of the Board except as otherwise limited 
by express provision of this Agreement. 

 
ARTICLE 6 - EMPLOYEE RIGHTS 

 
A. The Association and its members shall have the right to use building facilities for 

meetings at such hours that do not interfere with the regular program of the school 
or any other activities that had previously been scheduled and approved by the Board 
or its representatives and subject to the Building Use Policy as adopted by the Board.  

 
B. The Board agrees to make available to the Association for viewing and reproduction 

all pertinent information considered to be public in nature concerning the financial 
resources of the District, tentative budgetary requirements and allocations and such 
other appropriate information as will assist the Association. 

 
C. Duly authorized representatives of the Association and their respective affiliates shall 

be permitted to transact official local Association business on school property at all 



 

 
 

reasonable times, provided that this shall not interfere with or interrupt normal school 
operations or shift duties.  

 
D. Employees who work on the second shift shall be allowed up to one (1) hour off per 

month, if needed, without loss of pay to attend meetings of the Association, provided 
said employees make up said hour on the same day. Employees who use this time 
must obtain approval from their supervisor or designee.  

  
ARTICLE 7– GRIEVANCE / UNION REPRESENTATIVE 

 
A. The Employee shall be represented by the Association at any grievance hearing if 

the member wishes.   
 

The Board shall be notified at the beginning of each school year of the names of the 
Association leaders. 

 
B. If Association Representative(s) are required by the Employer to attend grievance 

hearings or meetings when regularly scheduled to work, they will be reimbursed for 
such lost time by the Employer.  No more than two (2) employees will be paid for any 
meeting. 

 
C. The Board and the Association agree to form an informal committee of two (2) 

Association representatives and two (2) administrators to discuss any areas of 
concern that either party may have.  The Board will not make any major changes 
without going through this committee and will give due consideration to the 
Association's input.  Association representatives required to attend meetings during 
working hours will be paid at their regular rate for all hours in attendance. 

 
D. After an optional informal meeting with the employee and their supervisor, the 

Grievance process shall begin with the employee and Association representative 
meeting with the Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources and Operations. 
Any decisions made by the Assistant Superintendent of  Human Resources and 
Operations may be appealed to the Superintendent.  

 
ARTICLE 8- HOLIDAYS 

 
A. All Maintenance employees who are regularly scheduled to work the week of a 

holiday and who work the workday before and after the holiday, when scheduled to 
work, shall be allowed the following eleven days with pay.  

 
 

Such days shall include Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, Day after Thanksgiving, 
Christmas Eve, Christmas Day, New Year’s Eve, New Year's Day (when Christmas 
and New Year's fall on Saturday or Sunday, the corresponding Friday or Monday will 
be the paid holiday), MLK Day, President’s Day, Memorial Day and Independence 
Day.  

 



 

 
 

B. When a paid holiday falls within an employee's vacation period, he/she will be paid 
for that holiday but shall not have that paid holiday counted as a PTO day. 

 
C. School Closings - When school is declared closed due to inclement weather, heating 

problems, road conditions or other problems that may arise, maintenance employees 
will work unless notified otherwise by the employer.  Employees must notify the 
employer if they cannot arrive at work at their normal time and give an estimated 
arrival time.  The estimated arrival time will be within two (2) hours of the employees’ 
normal starting time.  Once they arrive, employees will be expected to work the same 
number of hours as regularly scheduled unless excused by their Supervisor or 
designee. 

 
An employee calling to report they will be late or unable to report to work must speak 
directly with dispatch, their supervisor or designee. 

 
Any employee who is unable to report for work shall not be paid for the hours not 
worked, with the following exceptions: 
 

1. An employee who is unable to report to work under this provision shall use PTO, as 
long as they have earned PTO, to cover the day of absence.  

2. If the employer notifies employees that they are not expected to report for work on 
days when school is canceled, leave days will not be deducted when employees do 
not work and all employees will receive their regular pay on such days. 

3. Paid leave days that are scheduled in advance of the notice of school closing shall 
be honored. 

 
ARTICLE 9 - PROBATIONARY EMPLOYEES 

 
A. Employees hired into the Association unit shall be considered probationary for the 

first ninety (90) working days of their employment. 
 
B. There shall be no seniority among probationary employees. 
 
C. After the employee has completed the probationary period for his/her classification, 

he/she shall be entered on the seniority list of the unit and shall rank for seniority 
from his/her original date of hire. 

 
D. The Association shall represent probationary employees for the purpose of collective 

bargaining in respect to rates of pay, wages, hours of employment and other 
conditions of employment as set forth in Article 1 - Recognition of this Agreement, 
except for discipline or discharge. There shall be no recourse through the grievance 
procedure for discharge or discipline of an employee who has not acquired seniority 
status. 

 
E. All benefits not specifically excluded by this Agreement shall begin with the first day 

of the first full month following employment. 
 



 

 
 

ARTICLE 10 - NO STRIKE CLAUSE 
 
A. The Association and Board recognize that strikes and other forms of work stoppages 

by employees are contrary to law and public policy.  The Association and the Board 
subscribe to the principle that differences shall be resolved by peaceful and 
appropriate means without interruption of the school program.  The Association, 
therefore, agrees that its officers, representatives and members shall not authorize, 
instigate, cause, aid, encourage, ratify or condone, nor shall any employee take part 
in any strike, slowdown or stoppage of work, boycott, picketing or other interruption 
of activities in the school system.  Failure or refusal on the part of any employee to 
comply with the provisions of this Article shall be cause for whatever disciplinary 
action is deemed necessary by the Board. 

 
ARTICLE 11 - PROTECTION OF EMPLOYEES 

 
A. Legal and Physical - Liability insurance carried by the Board shall protect all 

employees against civil suits brought against them growing out of the exercise of 
their regular duties. 

 
B. All cases of accidents* and / or injury involving a maintenance employee during the 

performance of the employees' assigned duties or school activities shall be reported 
to their supervisor or designee on the day of the incident.  In emergency situations, 
the report must be filed as soon as possible if not on the day of the incident. 

 
*An accident is an unforeseen and unplanned event or circumstance, often with lack of 
intention.  It usually implies a generally negative outcome which might have been avoided 
or prevented had circumstances leading up to the accident been recognized, and acted 
upon, prior to its occurrence. Injury is not required for an incident to be identified as an 
accident.  
 

ARTICLE 12 – PAID TIME OFF 
 
A. PTO time for maintenance employees shall accumulate as follows.  
 

1. New Employees: 
a.    Any new employee, upon the successful completion of the 90 work-

day probationary period, will earn three (3) days of PTO time for the 
first four months and then .5 days of PTO time per month of service 
until the last day the district’s fiscal year (Maximum PTO able to earn 
would be seven (7) days.)  
b. 2nd-4th year  12 days 
c. 5th-9th year   18 days 
d. 10th-14th year  20 days 
e. 15+   24 days 

            
PTO time will be front loaded on July 1 but considered earned during the current 
year.  Any employee leaving employment prior to the end of the fiscal year shall have 



 

 
 

PTO days prorated based upon actual days worked.  Reimbursement to the District 
for unearned days may be required. 
 
Employees will not be granted unpaid days off unless pre-approved by the Director 
of Human Resources. 
 

B.       Employees should contact the Supervisor two (2) hours before their shift is to begin 
if they are unable to report that day. 

 
C.      PTO requests of five (5) or more consecutive days must be submitted in writing not            

less than thirty (30) days prior to the commencement date.  PTO requests for less 
than five (5) days will be submitted forty-eight (48) hours in advance; however, the 
forty-eight (48) hour requirement may be waived in certain circumstances; such as 
the employee's personal emergency. Employees’ PTO is subject to their request and 
scheduling by their supervisor or his designee. With approval of their supervisor or 
his designee, employees will be allowed to use PTO days. No more than ten (10) 
days may be used consecutively when school is not in session unless approved by 
supervisor. PTO requests shall be in writing and will be responded to promptly. 
Approval of PTO leave during the first week prior to opening of school and the last 
week of students attending school, will not be granted. 

  
 
C. Upon retirement, resignation, or permanent layoff, PTO time accumulated will be paid 

to employees based upon the time the employee has worked (see LEAVES .) 
 
D. A maximum of twenty-five (25) PTO days (200 hours) may be carried over to the 

following year.  
 

ARTICLE 13- HEALTH INSURANCE 
 
A        The Board shall make available one of two options: 

A. All employees will be offered single subscriber, self-funded healthcare 
protection for a twelve (12) month period for each full-time employee. Part-
time shall receive a pro-rata benefit. Healthcare benefits will stop on the last 
day of the month that the employee leaves the school district. 
 

B. Employees may choose to receive the cash in lieu (CIL) stipend (in the amount 
of $310.00 per month) only after the Grand Ledge Public Schools receives 
documentation that they have insurance coverage that meets the ACA 
minimum value and coverage requirements. Employees are responsible for 
their FICA on the cash option. 

     
  

ARTICLE 14 - LEAVES 
 
A. Upon retirement or resignation from employment, an employee with a minimum of 

twelve (12) years of service shall be paid for all unused sick leave based on one- half 



 

 
 

(½) his/her current rate.  In cases of death full payment shall be made to the 
employee's beneficiaries or to the employee's estate if there are no beneficiaries.  In 
no event shall such payments exceed the following percentages of an employee's 
average annual income from Grand Ledge Public Schools in the past three (3) years. 

 
 20 years or more  23% 
 16 years to 19 years 18% 
 12 years to 15 years 13% 
 
C. Funeral Leave - Paid funeral leave up to three (3) days shall be granted for a death 

in the immediate family.  This leave will not be deducted from the employee’s PTO 
bank. Immediate family is defined as spouse, children (including stepchildren), 
parents, brothers, sisters, grandparents, and parent-in-laws.  

 
D. At the expiration of accumulated days, an employee may request voluntary health 

leave without pay, subject to the following Section. 
E. Other Leaves 
 

1. Employees may, at the discretion of the Board of Education, be granted 
voluntary leave, without pay, during any school year for a period of up to one 
(1) year.  All such requests must be submitted in writing and the full conditions 
of the agreement must be in writing, including the assignment of the employee 
upon return, and effect, if any, of the leave on the salary schedule.  Such 
requests must be submitted at least fifteen (15) days prior to the starting date 
of the leave.  The seniority of a bargaining unit member shall be frozen for the 
duration of any such leave.  Whenever a voluntary leave is granted, written 
notice shall be prepared and submitted to the President of the Association The 
purpose of this notice is to provide the necessary information for preparing 
and updating the seniority list. 

 
2. Military leave will be granted to any regular employee who may enlist or be 

conscripted into the military forces of the United States for service or training. 
Upon return from such leave the employee shall be returned to a comparable 
position with full credit on the salary schedule for time in military service. 

 
3. An employee absent from the job to attend an approved meeting shall receive 

regular pay with no time charged against PTO leave. 
 

4. When approved in advance by the employee’s supervisor or designee, 
conference costs and travel expenses at the current IRS rate will be 
reimbursed by the Board.  Membership charges shall be the responsibility of 
the employee unless approved in advance by their supervisor or designee. 

 
5. Medical or Disability Leave 

 
a. A medical or disability leave of up to one (1) year shall automatically be 

granted upon presentation of a doctor's statement. 



 

 
 

 
   1. The Board reserves the right to require a second (2nd) opinion 

by a Board appointed physician at Board expense before 
granting a medical leave.  The second (2nd) opinion will be from 
a Board paid physician in the same medical specialty as the 
employee's doctor.  (However, if the insurance carrier required 
a second opinion, the Board shall adopt it as its own.)  

 
   2. If those two (2) physicians disagree, the parties will choose a 

third (3rd) physician whose opinion shall be conclusive.  The 
third (3rd) physician shall be paid for by the Board unless the 
employee's insurance covers his/her fee. 

  
  b. The employee may request an extension at the end of the leave. 
 

c.  Upon return, the employee shall assume a position with equal hours. 
 

d. For such leaves that last longer than one (1) year, the employee shall 
return to a vacancy in his/her former classification.  Should no vacancy 
be available, the employee shall be permitted to displace the least 
senior employee in his/her former classification working the same or 
less number of hours. 

 
 

ARTICLE 15 - GENERAL WORKING CONDITIONS 
 
 
A. Employees shall report all conditions they believe to be recognized as hazardous to 

their health and safety.  Further, nothing herein precludes employees from making 
inquiries or reports to the proper authorities.  The Employer agrees to investigate 
such reported hazards. 

 
B. While equipment and tools may vary, the Employer shall normally make available 

equipment and tools that are essential to completing assigned work. 
 
C. The Employer shall provide without cost to the employees, when approved by their 

supervisor the following: 
 
 1. Uniforms and thermal coveralls for maintenance & grounds workers. 
 2. Uniforms for maintenance workers as may be required by the Employer. 

The process / procedure for obtaining and turning in worn uniforms will be 
developed by administration.   

 3. Medical test and/or check-ups as required and for which the employee has no 
health insurance. 

 
D.  Employees shall obtain certifications as required by their job duties within one (1) 

year of the effective date of this contract or the date of hire for new employees.  The 



 

 
 

Director of Operations, in coordination with the Director of Human Resources, shall 
determine the necessary certifications for each position. 

 
ARTICLE 16 - WORK SCHEDULE 

 
A. All employees shall be guaranteed a minimum of a thirty (30) minute duty-free lunch 

period.  All employees will be entitled to a minimum of two (2) fifteen (15) minute 
relief times to be mutually scheduled, except that an employee working less than the 
normal workday may receive one (1) fifteen (15) minute relief time.  Employees 
working overtime will be entitled to an additional fifteen (15) minute relief time for 
every four (4) hours worked.  It is understood that an individual employee and his/her 
supervisor may mutually agree to vary lunch and relief times to meet individual 
needs. 

 
 

ARTICLE 17 - JURY DUTY 
 
An employee who serves on jury duty will be paid their regular salary. The time on Jury Duty 
will not be deducted from the employee’s PTO time.  
 

ARTICLE 18 - NEGOTIATION PROCEDURES 
 
A. This agreed to handbook may be extended only by mutual, written consent of both 

parties. 
 
B. Both parties agree to enter into negotiations on a new Agreement on wages, hours, 

and other conditions of employment at least six months, prior to expiration of 
contract.   

 
C. The provisions of this Handbook Agreement shall constitute a binding obligation of 

the parties for the duration hereof or until changed by written, mutual consent.  Any 
previously adopted policy, rule or regulation of the parties which is in conflict with a 
provision of this handbook shall be superseded and replaced by this Agreement. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 

ARTICLE 19 - DURATION OF AGREEMENT 
 

This Agreement shall be effective as of July 1, 2022 except as otherwise stated herein 
and shall continue in effect until June 30, 2023. 

 
 
 

FOR THE ASSOCIATION: FOR THE BOARD OF EDUCATION: 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
        ___________________________________ 
 
 

 

 

 

Dated this 11th day of  July, 2022. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

APPENDIX A 
 
The basic purpose of the maintenance activities of the school district shall be to provide physical 
conditions most conducive to carrying out the educational program of the school. 
 
I. DUTIES 

All employee duties shall be determined by their supervisor. 
 
II. RESIGNATION  

Notice of resignation shall be made in writing to the Board or the employee's supervisor 
two (2) weeks prior to date of resignation. 

 
III. SALARY SCALE – PAY TABLES 
 

 
Grounds 

 
Maintenance 

 

Step 
 

Hourly Wage Step 
 

Hourly Wage 
1 15.00 1 18.00 
2 15.50 2 18.50 
3 16.00 3 19.00 
4 16.50 4 19.50 
5 17.00 5 20.00 
6 17.50 6 20.50 
7 18.00 7 21.00 
8 18.50 8 21.50 
9 19.00 9 22.00 

10 19.50 10 22.50 
11 20.00 11 23.00 
12 20.50 12 23.50 

 
IV. Employees eligible to receive step increases shall receive the appropriate step raise 

effective July 17, 2022..  Those on Step 12 in the 2021-22 school year shall remain on 
Step 12 for the duration of this agreement. 

 
V. On-Call Pay 

Employees assigned seven (7) day ‘on-call’ duty shall be compensated two (2.0) hours 
each day. In addition to being compensated the two (2) hour ‘on-call’ stipend, 
employees shall be paid their hourly wage for the time they spend working if called in, 
with a minimum of two (2) hours for each actual call-in.   
*If an employee receives an additional call-in while already on a ‘call-in’ assignment 
their compensation will be continuous (not an additional minimum two hours).  
  

VI. Maintenance personnel shall receive a telephone stipend of sixty ($60.00) dollars per 
month.  

 



 

 

VII. Employees actively employed by the District as of June 1 shall receive a payment in lie 
of a cost of living adjustment of $.50 per regularly scheduled annual hours.  For a full-
time employee this would be $.50 for 2,080 hours or $1,040.  Part-time employees or 
new hires would be pro-rated based upon their reduced number of hours.  This payment 
will be paid on the first pay in June. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



B.  Approval of the Payment of Food Services Invoices

PROPOSED MOTION:  I move the Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education approve the 
payment of a Food Service Invoice to Stafford-Smith in the amount of Nineteen Thousand, Four 
Hundred Twenty-Two Dollars ($19,422), as presented.

NEW BUSINESS B

47

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1QtSLtGWZUR-CKLzZGWYtSM3x5-Z8UxUC?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1QtSLtGWZUR-CKLzZGWYtSM3x5-Z8UxUC?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1QtSLtGWZUR-CKLzZGWYtSM3x5-Z8UxUC?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1QtSLtGWZUR-CKLzZGWYtSM3x5-Z8UxUC?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1QtSLtGWZUR-CKLzZGWYtSM3x5-Z8UxUC?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1QtSLtGWZUR-CKLzZGWYtSM3x5-Z8UxUC?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1QtSLtGWZUR-CKLzZGWYtSM3x5-Z8UxUC?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1QtSLtGWZUR-CKLzZGWYtSM3x5-Z8UxUC?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1QtSLtGWZUR-CKLzZGWYtSM3x5-Z8UxUC?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1QtSLtGWZUR-CKLzZGWYtSM3x5-Z8UxUC?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1QtSLtGWZUR-CKLzZGWYtSM3x5-Z8UxUC?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1QtSLtGWZUR-CKLzZGWYtSM3x5-Z8UxUC?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1QtSLtGWZUR-CKLzZGWYtSM3x5-Z8UxUC?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1QtSLtGWZUR-CKLzZGWYtSM3x5-Z8UxUC?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1QtSLtGWZUR-CKLzZGWYtSM3x5-Z8UxUC?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1QtSLtGWZUR-CKLzZGWYtSM3x5-Z8UxUC?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1QtSLtGWZUR-CKLzZGWYtSM3x5-Z8UxUC?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1QtSLtGWZUR-CKLzZGWYtSM3x5-Z8UxUC?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1QtSLtGWZUR-CKLzZGWYtSM3x5-Z8UxUC?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1QtSLtGWZUR-CKLzZGWYtSM3x5-Z8UxUC?usp=sharing


C. Approval of the Payment of Capital Funds Invoices

PROPOSED MOTION:  I move the Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education approve the 
payment of Capital Funds Invoices in the amount of Forty-One Thousand, One Hundred Four Dollars 
and Eighty Cents ($41,104.80), as presented.

NEW BUSINESS C

48

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1hEInVqdf9k42OoBiRNa2NZdqGLHbTbbU?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1hEInVqdf9k42OoBiRNa2NZdqGLHbTbbU?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1hEInVqdf9k42OoBiRNa2NZdqGLHbTbbU?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1hEInVqdf9k42OoBiRNa2NZdqGLHbTbbU?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1hEInVqdf9k42OoBiRNa2NZdqGLHbTbbU?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1hEInVqdf9k42OoBiRNa2NZdqGLHbTbbU?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1hEInVqdf9k42OoBiRNa2NZdqGLHbTbbU?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1hEInVqdf9k42OoBiRNa2NZdqGLHbTbbU?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1hEInVqdf9k42OoBiRNa2NZdqGLHbTbbU?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1hEInVqdf9k42OoBiRNa2NZdqGLHbTbbU?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1hEInVqdf9k42OoBiRNa2NZdqGLHbTbbU?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1hEInVqdf9k42OoBiRNa2NZdqGLHbTbbU?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1hEInVqdf9k42OoBiRNa2NZdqGLHbTbbU?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1hEInVqdf9k42OoBiRNa2NZdqGLHbTbbU?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1hEInVqdf9k42OoBiRNa2NZdqGLHbTbbU?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1hEInVqdf9k42OoBiRNa2NZdqGLHbTbbU?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1hEInVqdf9k42OoBiRNa2NZdqGLHbTbbU?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1hEInVqdf9k42OoBiRNa2NZdqGLHbTbbU?usp=sharing


D.  Approval of the Payment of Proposal 1, Series 1 Bond Invoices

PROPOSED MOTION:  I move the Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education approve the 
payment of a Proposal 1, Series 1 Bond Invoice to GMB Architects and Engineers in the amount of 
Sixty-Four Thousand, Six Hundred Fifty-One Dollars ($64,651), as presented.

NEW BUSINESS D

49

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1Cxng7TMJvEwAFIwTML8Sd7sQieROeCZG?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1Cxng7TMJvEwAFIwTML8Sd7sQieROeCZG?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1Cxng7TMJvEwAFIwTML8Sd7sQieROeCZG?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1Cxng7TMJvEwAFIwTML8Sd7sQieROeCZG?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1Cxng7TMJvEwAFIwTML8Sd7sQieROeCZG?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1Cxng7TMJvEwAFIwTML8Sd7sQieROeCZG?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1Cxng7TMJvEwAFIwTML8Sd7sQieROeCZG?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1Cxng7TMJvEwAFIwTML8Sd7sQieROeCZG?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1Cxng7TMJvEwAFIwTML8Sd7sQieROeCZG?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1Cxng7TMJvEwAFIwTML8Sd7sQieROeCZG?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1Cxng7TMJvEwAFIwTML8Sd7sQieROeCZG?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1Cxng7TMJvEwAFIwTML8Sd7sQieROeCZG?usp=sharing


E.  Approval of the Payment of Proposal 1, Series 2 Bond Invoices

PROPOSED MOTION:  I move the Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education approve the 
payment of a Proposal 1, Series 2 Bond Invoice to Clark Construction Company in the amount of 
Twenty-One Thousand, Three Hundred Sixty-Eight Dollars and Seventy-Four Cents ($21,368.74), as 
presented.

NEW BUSINESS E

50

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1D2AXK3-Zu2nNPaUWayyBbnwuJWXELSrL?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1D2AXK3-Zu2nNPaUWayyBbnwuJWXELSrL?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1D2AXK3-Zu2nNPaUWayyBbnwuJWXELSrL?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1D2AXK3-Zu2nNPaUWayyBbnwuJWXELSrL?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1D2AXK3-Zu2nNPaUWayyBbnwuJWXELSrL?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1D2AXK3-Zu2nNPaUWayyBbnwuJWXELSrL?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1D2AXK3-Zu2nNPaUWayyBbnwuJWXELSrL?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1D2AXK3-Zu2nNPaUWayyBbnwuJWXELSrL?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1D2AXK3-Zu2nNPaUWayyBbnwuJWXELSrL?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1D2AXK3-Zu2nNPaUWayyBbnwuJWXELSrL?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1D2AXK3-Zu2nNPaUWayyBbnwuJWXELSrL?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1D2AXK3-Zu2nNPaUWayyBbnwuJWXELSrL?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1D2AXK3-Zu2nNPaUWayyBbnwuJWXELSrL?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1D2AXK3-Zu2nNPaUWayyBbnwuJWXELSrL?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1D2AXK3-Zu2nNPaUWayyBbnwuJWXELSrL?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1D2AXK3-Zu2nNPaUWayyBbnwuJWXELSrL?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1D2AXK3-Zu2nNPaUWayyBbnwuJWXELSrL?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1D2AXK3-Zu2nNPaUWayyBbnwuJWXELSrL?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1D2AXK3-Zu2nNPaUWayyBbnwuJWXELSrL?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1D2AXK3-Zu2nNPaUWayyBbnwuJWXELSrL?usp=sharing


F.  Approval of the Payment of Proposal 2, Series 1 Bond Invoices

PROPOSED MOTION:  I move the Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education approve the 
payment of Proposal 2, Series 1 Bond Invoices in the amount of Two Hundred Eighty-Seven Thousand, 
Eighty-Five Dollars and Twenty-Three Cents ($287,085.23), as presented.

NEW BUSINESS F

51

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1JGhDL7278ffvTpWC9V6I9w0gkBhCWGpI?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1JGhDL7278ffvTpWC9V6I9w0gkBhCWGpI?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1JGhDL7278ffvTpWC9V6I9w0gkBhCWGpI?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1JGhDL7278ffvTpWC9V6I9w0gkBhCWGpI?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1JGhDL7278ffvTpWC9V6I9w0gkBhCWGpI?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1JGhDL7278ffvTpWC9V6I9w0gkBhCWGpI?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1JGhDL7278ffvTpWC9V6I9w0gkBhCWGpI?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1JGhDL7278ffvTpWC9V6I9w0gkBhCWGpI?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1JGhDL7278ffvTpWC9V6I9w0gkBhCWGpI?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1JGhDL7278ffvTpWC9V6I9w0gkBhCWGpI?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1JGhDL7278ffvTpWC9V6I9w0gkBhCWGpI?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1JGhDL7278ffvTpWC9V6I9w0gkBhCWGpI?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1JGhDL7278ffvTpWC9V6I9w0gkBhCWGpI?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1JGhDL7278ffvTpWC9V6I9w0gkBhCWGpI?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1JGhDL7278ffvTpWC9V6I9w0gkBhCWGpI?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1JGhDL7278ffvTpWC9V6I9w0gkBhCWGpI?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1JGhDL7278ffvTpWC9V6I9w0gkBhCWGpI?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1JGhDL7278ffvTpWC9V6I9w0gkBhCWGpI?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1JGhDL7278ffvTpWC9V6I9w0gkBhCWGpI?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1JGhDL7278ffvTpWC9V6I9w0gkBhCWGpI?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1JGhDL7278ffvTpWC9V6I9w0gkBhCWGpI?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1JGhDL7278ffvTpWC9V6I9w0gkBhCWGpI?usp=sharing


G.  Approval of the Payment of Proposal 2, Series 2 Bond Invoices

PROPOSED MOTION:  I move the Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education approve the 
payment of Proposal 2, Series 2 Bond Invoices in the amount of One Million, Sixty-Three Thousand, 
One Hundred Thirty-Four Dollars and Eleven Cents ($1,063,134.11), as presented.

NEW BUSINESS G

52

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1Xl553sAxYKpd-GyC8pDhqdcHplHltnBR?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1Xl553sAxYKpd-GyC8pDhqdcHplHltnBR?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1Xl553sAxYKpd-GyC8pDhqdcHplHltnBR?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1Xl553sAxYKpd-GyC8pDhqdcHplHltnBR?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1Xl553sAxYKpd-GyC8pDhqdcHplHltnBR?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1Xl553sAxYKpd-GyC8pDhqdcHplHltnBR?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1Xl553sAxYKpd-GyC8pDhqdcHplHltnBR?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1Xl553sAxYKpd-GyC8pDhqdcHplHltnBR?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1Xl553sAxYKpd-GyC8pDhqdcHplHltnBR?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1Xl553sAxYKpd-GyC8pDhqdcHplHltnBR?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1Xl553sAxYKpd-GyC8pDhqdcHplHltnBR?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1Xl553sAxYKpd-GyC8pDhqdcHplHltnBR?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1Xl553sAxYKpd-GyC8pDhqdcHplHltnBR?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1Xl553sAxYKpd-GyC8pDhqdcHplHltnBR?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1Xl553sAxYKpd-GyC8pDhqdcHplHltnBR?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1Xl553sAxYKpd-GyC8pDhqdcHplHltnBR?usp=sharing


COMMENTS FROM STAFF & BOARD

53



• Board Bond Advisory Meeting - Monday, August 8, 2022, 5:00 p.m., Sawdon Room 107

• Work Session - Monday, August 8, 2022, 6:00 p.m., Sawdon Board Room

FUTURE TOPICS

54



Attorney / Client Privilege - Per Section 8(1)(e) of the Open Meetings Act, PA 267 of 1976.

PROPOSED MOTION: I move the Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education move into Closed 
Session for the purpose of receiving confidential Attorney/ Client Communication as Per Section 
8(1)(e) of the Open Meetings Act, PA 267 of 1976 - Hultberg v. GLPS, File No. 42172.

ROLL CALL VOTE

CLOSED SESSION

55



   Time:  _________________________

RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION

56



   Time:  _________________________

ADJOURNMENT

57


